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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the City Council
City of Artesia, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Artesia, California as of and
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Artesia, California, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, budgetary comparison schedules for the General and major special revenue funds, Schedule of
Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Pension Contributions, Schedule of
Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and Schedule of OPEB Employer Contributions to be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Management has chosen not to present a Management’s
Discussion and Analysis. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Artesia's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining governmental,
combining proprietary, and individual non-major governmental fund information, major capital project fund
budgetary comparison schedule, and combining fiduciary fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.

The non-major governmental combining and individual fund information, major capital project fund budgetary
comparison schedule, and combining fiduciary fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the non-major governmental
combining and individual fund information, major capital project fund budgetary comparison schedule, and
fiduciary fund combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15,2022, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

A, Kf‘? va

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, California
August 15,2022
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe two basic
government-wide financial statements:

e Statement of Net Position
e Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position

The government-wide financial statements include all governmental and business-type activities of the City of
Artesia. Their purpose is to summarize the City’s consolidated financial activities and position. The
government-wide financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to
a private business entity.

Statement of Net Position is the basic government-wide statement of position. A statement of position presents
all of an entity’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position (equity). The
presentation is referred to as the statement of net position (rather than balance sheet), and the difference
between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows is referred to as net position (rather than

equity).

GAAP requires the City’s governmental activities be reported separately from its business-type activities. In
general, governmental activities include activities reported in the general, special revenue, and capital projects
funds. The City’s government-wide statement of net position provides a column for the governmental
activities.

The difference of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources in the
government-wide statement of net position is referred to as net position. Net position is categorized as follows:

e Net investment in capital assets
e Restricted
e Unrestricted

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position is used to report changes in net position reported on the
government-wide statement of net position. The government-wide statement of activities presents expenses
before revenues. This emphasizes that in the public sector, revenues are generated for the express purpose of
providing services rather than as an end in themselves.

The first column of the government-wide statement of activities present the direct expenses associated with
each of the City’s functional activities:
e General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public works
Community development

The government-wide statements include the financial activities of the City of Artesia and its blended
component units (Artesia Housing Authority and Artesia Parking Authority).



City of Artesia

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Loan
Interest
Prepaid items
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable assets

Depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflow - Pension related
Deferred outflow - OPEB related

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net postemployment benefit obligation

Net pension liability
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflow - Pension related

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Public safety
Street projects
Housing
Other purposes
Total restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Primary
Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 13,619,048 $ 1,000,856 $ 14,619,904
914,711 6,865 921,576
36,903 36,903
101,651 101,651
23,664 23,664
9,550,545 9,550,545
15,916,552 640,474 16,557,026
25,467,097 640,474 26,107,571
40,163,074 1,648,195 41,811,269
907,740 907,740
331,202 331,202
1,238,942 1,238,942
1,294,044 12,652 1,306,696
77,282 50,876 128,158
6,695,567 6,695,567
3,092,846 3,092,846
45,000 45,000
295,684 295,684
11,500,423 63,528 11,563,951
348,862 348,862
348,862 348,862
25,467,097 640,474 26,107,571
1,043,842 1,043,842
2,402,291 2,402,291
492,423 492,423
868,690 868,690
4,807,246 4,807,246
(721,612) 944,193 222,581
$ 29,552,731 $ 1,584,667 § 31,137,398




City of Artesia
Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital Total
for Grants and Grants and Program
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenues
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 3,955,102 % 636,224 % 16,280 $ - % 652,504
Public safety 4,160,102 206,202 100,000 306,202
Parks and recreation 1,174,728 124,268 248,585 372,853
Public works 2,063,743 103,130 790,372 1,144,628 2,038,130
Community development 724,973 58,441 13,072 71,513
Total governmental activities 12,078,648 1,128,265 919,724 1,393,213 3,441,202
Business-type activities:
Residential refuse 3,935 3,935
Parking 261,551 208,646 208,646
Artesia Towne Center 279,667 482,621 482,621
Total business-type activities 541,218 695,202 695,202
Total primary government $ 12,619,866 S 1,823,467 $ 919,724 % 1,393,213 $ 4,136,404

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Transient occupancy taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Business licenses taxes
Other taxes
Use of money and property
Other
Transfers
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of fiscal year

Net position - end of fiscal year

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (3302,598) $ - 8 (3,302,598)
(3,853,900) (3.853,900)
(801,875) (801,875)
(25,613) (25,613)
(653,460) (653,460)
(8,637,446) (8,637,446)
3,935 3,935
(52,905) (52,905)
202,954 202,954
153,984 153,984
(8,637,446) 153,984 (8,483,462)
1,896,335 1,896,335
391,137 391,137
4,137,499 4,137,499
846,786 846,786
650,117 650,117
22,008 22,008
712,384 712,384
168,070 168,070
478,191 (478,191)
9,302,527 (478,191) 8,824,336
665,081 (324,207) 340,874
28,887,650 1,908,874 30,796,524
$ 29,552,731 $ 1,584,667 $ 31,137,398
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe the following
basic governmental fund financial statements:

o Balance Sheet

e Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

The governmental fund financial statements include all the major individual governmental funds and the total
of non-major funds of the City of Artesia. The governmental fund financial statements are prepared on the
modified accrual basis. The major governmental funds of the City are as follows:

General Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures used to carry out basic governmental activities of
the City such as general government, public safety, parks and recreation, public works, and community
development. Revenue is recorded by source (e.g., taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental, charges for
services and fines and forfeits). General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current day-to-day
operations and operating equipment. They are recorded by major functional classification and operating
departments. This fund accounts for all financial transactions not properly accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects is a fund that accounts for funds received that have a broader discretionary use by the City
Council for capital improvements.

Budgetary comparison schedule for the General fund is included in the required supplementary section.
Budgetary comparison schedules for the capital projects fund and individual non-major funds are located in
the supplemental information section of the financial statements.



City of Artesia
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,877,973 $ 1,952,792 $ 4,788,283 3 13,619,048
Receivables:
Accounts 863,988 9,137 41,586 914,711
Loan 36,903 36,903
Interest 101,651 101,651
Prepaid items 23,664 23,664
Due from other funds 269,817 269,817
Total assets $ 8,137,093 $ 1,998,832 3 4,829,869 $ 14,965,794
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,233,412 $ - $ 60,632 $ 1,294,044
Deposit payable 15,387 61,895 77,282
Due to other funds 269,817 269,817
Total liabilities 1,248,799 392,344 1,641,143
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unearned revenues 53,470 53,470
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 53,470 53,470
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items 23,664 23,664
Restricted for:
Housing projects 494,452 494,452
Street projects 742,320 742,320
Transportation projects 2,253,847 2,253,847
Air quality projects 761,785 761,785
Public safety 430,932 430,932
Committed to:
Contingency reserve 7,007,490 7,007,490
Assigned to:
Water District Consolidation Analysis 100,000 100,000
Sanitation District Consolidation Analysis 25,000 25,000
Preliminary Planning Projects 90,000 90,000
Water Tower Project 80,000 80,000
Organizational Development Plan 25,000 25,000
Accrued Leave Reserve 100,000 100,000
Economic Development 25,000 25,000
General Contingencies 123,000 123,000
Measure M 100,000 100,000
Business Fagade Improvements 25,000 25,000
Business Improvement District 125,000 125,000
City Facility Improvements 80,000 80,000
CERT Training 25,000 25,000
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement 95,000 95,000
Specific Plan Development 50,000 50,000
General Plan Update 30,000 30,000
Street projects 230,000 1,998,832 2,228,832
CalPERS Net Pension Unfunded Liability 105,000 105,000
CalPERS Net Retiree Health Unfunded Liability 100,000 100,000
Unassigned (1,729,330) (245,811) (1,975,141)
Total fund balances 6,834,824 1,998,832 4,437,525 13,271,181
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 8,137,093 $ 1,998,832 $ 4,829,869 $ 14,965,794

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.



City of Artesia
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 13,271,181

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position were different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources. Therefore, they are not reported in
the governmental funds. Nondepreciable assets and depreciable assets net of accumulated depreciation totals: 25,467,097

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not reported in the
governmental funds.

Compensated absences

(340,684)
Net other postemployment benefits payable (6,695,567)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB Related 331,202
Total long-term liabilities (6,705,049)
Pension related debt applicable to the City governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period and
accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension are only reported in the Statement of Net Position as the changes in these amounts affects only the
government-wide statements for governmental activities.
Deferred outflows of resources 907,740
Deferred inflows of resources (348,862)
Net Pension liability (3,092,846)
Total pension related items (2,533,968)
Certain revenues are recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds because they did not meet
the revenue recognition criteria. However, they are treated as revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.
53,470
Net Position of Governmental Activities S 29,552,731

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Capital Project Fund
Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 6,988,888 $ - 969,320 $ 7,958,208
Licenses and permits 538,854 538,854
Intergovernmental 1,004,497 1,306,260 2,310,757
Charges for services 348,894 34,315 383,209
Use of money and property 429,265 12,713 270,406 712,384
Fines and forfeitures 206,202 206,202
Other revenues 16,691 151,379 168,070
Total revenues 9,533,291 47,028 2,697,365 12,277,684
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 3,578,872 35,088 3,613,960
Public safety 4,154,411 4,154,411
Parks and recreation 956,034 106,476 1,062,510
Public works 878,969 10,439 358,845 1,248,253
Community development 424,006 300,967 724,973
Capital outlay 2,337,609 80,905 1,056,397 3,474,911
Total expenditures 12,329,901 91,344 1,857,773 14,279,018
REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,796,610) (44,316) 839,592 (2,001,334)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 579,191 50,600 629,791
Transfers out (50,600) (101,000) (151,600)
Total other financing sources (uses) 528,591 (50,400) 478,191
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES (2,268,019) (44,316) 789,192 (1,523,143)
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of fiscal year 9,102,843 2,043,148 3,648,333 14,794,324
End of fiscal year $ 6,834,824 $ 1,998,832 4,437,525 $ 13,271,181

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia
Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (1,523,143)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position were different because:

Governmental funds reported capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Position, the cost of those assets are allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This

was the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period:
Capital outlay 3,474,911

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net
Position, but it does not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as an

expenditure in the governmental funds. (973,333)

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits are reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Position, but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, they are not reported as an

expenditure in the governmental funds.
Change in compensated absences (36,326)

Change in other postemployment benefits and related deferred outflows (336,076)

Pension expense reported in the governmental funds includes the annual required contributions. In the Statement of
Activities, pension expense includes the change in the net pension liability and related change in pension amounts for

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. 71,194

Certain revenues are recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds because they do not meet the

revenue recognition criteria of availability. However, they are included as revenue in the Governmental-Wide Statement of

Activities and Changes in Net Position under the full accrual basis. (12,146)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 665,081

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe following basic
proprietary fund financial statements:

e Statement of Net Position
e Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
e Statement of Cash Flows

The proprietary fund financial statements include the major Residential Refuse Service, Paid Parking, and
Artesia Towne Center enterprise funds of the City of Artesia.

The proprietary financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to a
private business entity.

Enterprise funds are used to account for activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The intent is to recover costs of operation on a continuing basis through user charges.

Residential Refuse Service is used to account for the operation of the City’s trash hauling service. The intent
of this fund is to recover costs of operation and capital maintenance (depreciation).

Paid Parking is used to account for the operation of the City’s paid parking program.

Artesia Towne Center is used to account for the operation of the City’s Artesia Towne Center. The intent of
this fund is to account for the rental income and maintenance expenditures of the Artesia Towne Center.



City of Artesia

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019
Residential Artesia
Refuse Paid Towne
Service Parking Center Total
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and investments $ 75,025 $ 584,249 § 341,582 % 1,000,856
Receivables:
Accounts 6,865 6,865
Total current assets 75,025 591,114 . 341,582 1,007,721
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Machinery and equipment 249,110 249,110
Infrastructure 561,203 66,718 627,921
Less:
Accumulated depreciation (234,333) (2,224) (236,557)
Total noncurrent assets 575,980 64,494 640,474
Total assets 75,025 1,167,094 406,076 1,648,195
LIABILITIES AND
NET POSITION
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,121 10,531 12,652
Deposit payable 50,876 50,876
Total liabilities 2,121 61,407 63,528
Net position:
Net investiment in capital assets 575,980 64,494 640,474
Unrestricted 75,025 588,993 280,175 944,193
Total net position $ 75,025 $ 1,164,973 $ 344,669 $ 1,584,667

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Residential Artesia
Refuse Paid Towne
Service Parking Center Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 3 2444  § 166,231 3 447,032 $ 615,707
Use of money and property 1,491 42,415 35,589 79,495
Total revenues 3,935 208,646 482,621 695,202
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel 69,226 85,617 154,843
Materials and supplies 144,966 191,826 336,792
Depreciation 47,359 2,224 49,583
Total expenses 261,551 279,667 541,218
TRANSFERS:
Transfers out (478,191) (478,191)
Total transfers (478,191) (478,191)
Change in net position 3,935 (52,905) (275,237) (324,207)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of fiscal year 71,090 1,217,878 619,906 1,908,874
End of fiscal year 5 75,025 % 1,164,973 $ 344,669 $ 1,584,667

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activitics:
Cash received from customers, users and grants
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Transfers to other funds

Net cash used for non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of fiscal year

Cash and cash equivalents end of fiscal year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activitics
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Residential Artesia
Refuse Paid Towne
Service Parking Center Totals
4,017 by 208,831 $ 482746 5 695,594
(151,827) (184,854) (336.681)
(69,226) (85,617) (154,843)
4,017 (12,222) 212,275 204,070
(66,718) (66,718)
(66.,718) (66,718)
(478,191) (478,191)
(478,191) (478,191)
4,017 (12,222) (332,634) (340,839)
71,008 596,471 674,216 1,341,695
75,025 $ 584249  § 341,582 S 1,000,856
3935 % (52,905) § 202,954 ' $ 153,984
47359 2,224 49583
82 185 125 392
(6,861) 1,662 (5,199)
5,310 5,310
82 40,683 9,321 50,086
4,017 $ (12,222) % 212,275  $§ 204,070

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe following basic
proprietary fund financial statements:

e Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
e Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

The fiduciary financial statements report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore
cannot be used to support the government’s own programs.

The fiduciary financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to a
private business entity.

Successor Agency fo the Artesia Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the
custodial responsibilities assigned to the Successor Agency to the Artesia Redevelopment Agency.

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units or funds.



City of Artesia

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019
Successor Agency
to the Artesia
Redevelopment
Agency
Private Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 901,169 1,217,661
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 1,162,500
Prepaid items 2,300
Receivables:
Accounts receivable 19,451
Total assets $ 2,065,969 1,237,112
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 3,700 38,958
Deposits payable 780,691 1,198,154
Accrued interest payable 70,615
Long-term debt:
Due within one year 281,849
Due in more than one year 13,627,296
Total liabilities 14,764,151 1,237,112
NET POSITION:
Held in trust for other purposes $ (12,698,182)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF ARTESIA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Private-Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Additions:
Property taxes
Use of money and property

Total additions

Deductions:
Community development
Administrative expenses
Interest and fiscal charges

Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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1,398.300
15,412

1,413,712

10,660
250,000
869,386

1,130,046

283,666
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Artesia, California (City), have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stated of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to
governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1959, under the laws of the State of California and enjoys all the
rights and privileges applicable to a General Law City. The City is governed by an elected five-member
council. The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units defined as legally
separate entities that meet any one of the following tests:

* The City appoints the voting majority of the board of the component unit and:
o isable to impose its will on the component unit and/or
o isin a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the component unit.
e The component unit is fiscally dependent upon the City.
* The financial statements of the City would be misleading if data from the component unit were
omitted.

Artesia_Housing Authority - The five members of the City Council serve as the governing body of the
Housing Authority and exercise all rights, powers, duties and privileges of the Housing Authority. The
Mayor serves as the Chairperson of the Housing Authority. The purpose of the Housing Authority is to
prepare and execute plans for housing projects within the City. The activity of this blended component unit
is reported in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund.

Artesia Parking Authority - The five members of the City Council serve as the governing body of the Parking
Authority and exercise all rights, powers, duties and privileges of the Parking Authority. The Mayor serves
as the Chairperson of the Parking Authority. The purpose of the Parking Authority is to prepare and
execute plans for parking projects within the City. The activity of this blended component unit is reported
in the Paid Parking Proprietary Fund.

Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Housing Authority or the Parking Authority. These
component units are included in the primary government because of the significance of their financial or
operation relationship and they have the same governing body as the City.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses. Governmental resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means
by which spending activities are controlled.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental activities and
the business-type activity for the City. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from the business-type activity, which relies to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

These basic financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents
changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in
which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Certain indirect costs are included in the program expenses
reported for specific functions.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:
» Charges for services to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function
Operating grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a
given function
» Capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a given
function

\%

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All
internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated, including due to/from other funds
and transfers in/out.

Governmental Funds Financial Statenments

Governmental Funds Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net position
as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Governmental Funds Financial Statements, Continued

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets, deferred outflows of
resources, current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Balance Sheet. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net fund balance. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they
become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual received soon enough
after fiscal year-end such that they are available to finance expenditures of the current period (generally 60
days after fiscal year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated
as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, and other
taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Unavailable revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria
are met, the unavailable revenue is removed from the Balance Sheet and revenue is recognized. Unearned
revenues arise when the government receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant
monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the
government has a legal claim to the resources, the unearned revenue is removed from the Balance Sheet
and revenue is recognized.

The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are
provided to explain the differences between the “economic resources” and “current financial resources” basis of

accounting.

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows. Proprietary funds are presented on
an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or
non-current) associated with the activity are included on the Statement of Net Position. The reported fund
equity presents total net position. The operating statement of the proprietary fund presents increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recognized when they are earned
and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for services such as refuse, parking, and rent. The
primary operating expense includes payments to the refuse service provider for the cost of these services,
repairs and maintenance on properties and meter maintenance. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The City's fiduciary funds represent a private purpose trust fund and
agency funds. The private purpose trust fund is reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The
agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

* The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Capital Projects Capital Projects Fund’s primary function is to account for funds received that
have a broader discretionary use by the City Council for capital improvements.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

* The Residential Refuse Service Proprietary Fund’s primary function is to account for the operations
of the City’s trash hauling service.

 The Paid Parking Proprietary Fund’s primary function is to account for paid parking in the City of
Artesia.

e The Artesia Towne Center Proprietary Fund’s primary function is to account for rent and
maintenance associated with the Artesia Towne Center.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
The City also reports the following funds:
* The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the revenues derived from specific revenue
sources, which are usually required by law or administrative regulation to be account for in separate

funds.

¢ The Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for the activities of the Successor Agency to the
Artesia Redevelopment Agency.

e The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals,
private business and other governmental agencies for the George Nelson Memorial and Senior
Citizens activities and programs.

C. Future Accounting Pronouncements

Future GASB Pronouncements

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements.

The provisions of Statement Number 84 “Fiduciary Activities” are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018.

The provisions of Statement Number 87 “Leases” are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019,

The provisions of Statement Number 88 “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements” are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018.

The provisions for Statement Number 89 “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period” are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.

The provisions for Statement Number 90 “Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 61" are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.

The provisions for Statement Number 91 “Conduit Debt Obligation” are effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2020.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,
Equity, or Fund Balance

Cash and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) operates in accordance with appropriate State laws and regulations. The reported

value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" or "advances to/from other funds". All
account and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Property tax
revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied providing they become
available. Available means then due, or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected
within the current period, or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County of Los Angeles collects property taxes for the City.
Tax liens attach annually on the first day in January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
The tax levy covers the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured personal property taxes and one-half of
the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due February 1. All taxes are
delinquent, if unpaid, on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes
become due on the first of March each fiscal year and are delinquent on August 31.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The fund balances in the
governmental fund types have been reported as nonspendable for amounts equal to the prepaid items in
the fund level statements, since these amounts are not available for appropriation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the
City as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Infrastructure assets have a capitalization threshold of $5,000. Purchased or constructed capital assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair value at the date of donation.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,
Equity, or Fund Balance, Continued

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 years
Vehicles and equipment 3 -10 years
Infrastructure 25 years

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and the governmental and proprietary funds balance
sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that
time. The City has two items that qualifies for reporting in this category. These item are the deferred
outflow related to pensions and OPEB. These amounts are equal to employer contributions made after the
measurement date of the net pension liability and any other deviance from actuarial determined
assumptions that are to be amortized relating to the net pension liability or OPEB.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the governmental and proprietary funds balance
sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has
three items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is unavailable revenues, which is
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenues from two sources: taxes and grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available. The second item is a deferred inflow related to
pensions resulting from the difference in projected and actual earnings on investments of the pension plan
fiduciary net position. This amount is amortized over five years. The third item is a deferred inflow
related to pensions for the changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and the
proportionate share of contributions. This amount is amortized over a closed period equal to the average
of the expected remaining services lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plans
determined as of June 30, 2016 (the beginning of the measurement period ended June 30, 2018), which is
3.8 years.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,
Equity, or Fund Balance, Continued

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Vacation pay is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken or upon termination of employment.
Normally, an employee cannot accrue more than 40 days of vacation time. Sick leave is payable when an
employee is unable to work because of illness. Upon termination, an employee will be paid for any unused
vacation and sick leave based upon 100% of the current wage rate in effect.

All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated absences are paid, if matured, out of the
General Fund.

Long-Term Obligations

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, discounts, and
issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Position

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position, net
position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by enabling legislation, external creditors, grantors,
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of “net
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position”.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,
Equity, or Fund Balance, Continued

Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the City’s practice to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net
position is applied.

Fund Balances
In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the following categories:

Nonspendable - Items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items and
inventories, items that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as principal of an
endowment or revolving loan funds.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources subject to externally
enforceable legal restrictions. This includes externally imposed restrictions by creditors, such as through
debt covenants, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, as well as restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources, the use of which is
constrained by limitations that the government imposes upon itself at its highest level of decision making,
normally the governing body, and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The City
Council is considered the highest authority for the City and the adoption of a formal resolution is required
to establish a fund balance commitment.

The City has a contingency reserve to address major unforeseen expenditures such as damage to
facilities or infrastructure. The reserve was established by the City Council through resolution 16-
2606 and requires a four-fifths vote to expend the funds. The balance of this reserve as of June 30,
2019 was $7,007,490.

Assigned - Assigned fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources reflecting the government's
intended use of resources. Assignment of resources can be done by the highest level of decision making or
by a committee or official designated for that purpose. The City Council has authorized the City Manager
for that purpose.

Unassigned - This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them. The general fund
is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,
Equity, or Fund Balance, Continued

Governmental Fund Balance

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which all restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply in the following order, except for instances wherein
an ordinance specifies the fund balance:

> Restricted

»  Committed

> Assigned

> Unassigned

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

E. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported
amount of expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2019, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Government Fiduciary
Wide Funds
Statement of Statement of
Net Position Net Position Total
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and investments $ 14619904 § 2,118,830 $ 16,738,734
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments held by fiscal agent 1,162,500 1,162,500
Total cash and investments $ 14619904 $ 3281330 $ 17,901,234

Cash and investments at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Cash on hand (petty cash) $ 500
Demand deposits 575,159
Investments 17,325,575

Total cash and investments $ 17,901,234

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The City's Investment Policy is reviewed and adopted by the City Council each year. Regarding allowable
investment types, the investment policy is more conservative and restrictive than the investment vehicles
authorized by Section 53600.5 of the California Government Code. Investment vehicles not specifically
mentioned in the City's investment policy, are not authorized unless the policy is amended by the City
Council or is approved as part of the provisions of the bond indentures. Investments are limited to:

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio* _in One Issuer
United States Treasury Notes 5 years None None
United States Government Sponsored
Agency Securities:

Treasury Bills 1 year None None
Treasury Bonds 5 years None None
Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Passbook Savings Accounts N/A None None

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None $65,000,000

N/ A - Not Applicable
* - Excluding amounts held by bond trustees that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.

The City's investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the City's exposure
to interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.
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City of Artesia
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk,
and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Allowed in One Issuer
United States Treasury Obligations None None None
United States Government Sponsored

Agency Securities None None None
Banker’s Acceptances 360 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts None None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) None None None
Certificates of Deposit None None None

N/ A - Not Applicable
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk
is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Remaining
Maturity
(in Years)
Investment Type 1 Year or Less
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 16,163,075
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money market mutual funds 1,162,500

$ 17,325,575
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating, by Standards
and Poor, as of fiscal year end for each investment type:

Minimum
Total as of Legal Not
Investment Type June 30, 2019 Rating AAA Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 16,163,075 N/A $ - % 16,163,075
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money market mutual funds 1,162,500 A 1,162,500
$ 17,325,575 $ 1,162,500 $ 16,163,075

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy imposes restrictions for certain types of investments with any one issuer;
however, external investment pools are excluded from this requirement. At June 30, 2019, the City’s
investments were with LAIF and money market mutual funds held by fiscal agent which are exempt from
this requirement.

" Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. At June 30, 2019, the
City deposits (bank balances) were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized
as required under California Law, with the exception of cash held by fiscal agent. Of the $1,162,500 of cash
held by fiscal agent, $250,000 is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the
remaining $912,500 was neither insured by the FDIC nor collateralized as required under California law.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Fair Value Measurements

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy establish by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles recognize a three tiered fair
value hierarchy as follows: Level 1 - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets; Level 2 -
Investments reflect prices that are based on similar observable asset either directly or indirectly, which may
include inputs in markets that are not considered active; and Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based
upon unobservable sources. The City’s investment in the State Investment Pool (LAIF) and money market
mutual funds exempt from fair value measurements disclosure.

3. LOAN RECEIVABLE

In November 1989, the City entered into an agreement with the Southern California Water Company for the
installation of a domestic water system in an Artesia service area. As part of this agreement, the City loaned
the Southern California Water Company $139,925 with no interest to be repaid over 40 years. At
June 30, 2019 the outstanding loan receivable is $36,903.
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows:

Balance as of Balance as of
June 30,2018 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30,2019

Governmental Activites
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land $ 6233216 § 2502612 § - h) - $ 8,735,828

Construction in progress 273,274 574,943 (33,500) 814,717
Total nondepreciable

capital assets 6,506,490 3,077,555 (33,500) 9,550,545

Depreciable capital assets

Buildings 1,841,797 1,841,797

Improvements other than buildings 912,445 912,445

Automobile equipment 544 305 343415 887,720

Office furniture and equipment 281,191 30,397 311,588

Other equipment 1,024,607 23,544 1,048,151

Infrastructure 19,869,308 33,500 19,902,808
Total depreciable capital assets 24,473,653 397,356 33,500 24,904,509
Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings (899,922) (36,875) (936,797)

Improvements other than buildings (673,927) (53,000) (726,927)

Automobile equipment (437,282) (24,036) (461318)

Office furniture and equipment (245,048) (13,236) (258,284)

Other equipment (719,732) (54,984) (774,716)

Infrastructure (5,038,713) (791,202) : (5,829915)
Total accumulated depreciation (8,014,624) (973333 (8,987,957)

Net depreciable capital assets 16,459,029 (575,977) 33,500 15,916,552

Net capital assets $ 22965519 § 2501578 § - $ - $ 25467,097

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 39,934
Public safety 5,601
Public works 815,490
Parks and recreation 112,218

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 973.333
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows (continued):

Balance as of Balance as of
June 30,2018 Additions Deletions June 30,2019
Business-type Activites
Depreciable capital assets
Other equipment $ 249,110 § - $ - $ 249,110
Infrastructure 561,203 66,718 627921
Total depreciable capital assets 810,313 66,718 877,031
Less accumulated depreciation
Other equipment (74,734) (24911) (99,645)
Infrastructure (112,240) (24,672) (136,912)
Total accumulated depreciation (186,974) (49,583) (236,557)
Net depreciable capital assets 623339 17,135 640,474
Net capital assets $ 623339 § 17,135  § - $ 640,474

Depreciation expense was charged to the Paid Parking enterprise fund ($47,359) and Artesia Towne Center
enterprise fund ($2,224).

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a schedule of changes in long-term liabilities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019:

Balance at Balance at Due Within
June 30,2018 Additions Repayments June 30,2019 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences $ 304,358 $ 78455 §  (42,129) § 340,684 § 45000
Total $ 304,358 $ 78455 $§  (42,129) § 340,684 $ 45,000

Compensated Absences

The compensated absences payable has been accrued for governmental activities on the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. Typically, the General Fund has been used to liquidate the liability for compensated
absences. There is no fixed payment schedule to pay these liabilities. The total amount of compensated
absences payable at June 30, 2019 was $340,684.
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6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019, is as follows:
Due To / Due From Other Funds

At June 30, 2019, the City had the following due to/from other funds:

Due To (payable) Due From (receivable) Amount
Non-major Governmental Funds General Fund $ 269817
$ 269817

The above interfund balances resulted from temporary reclassifications made at June 30, 2019 to cover cash
shortfalls.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers Out Transfers In Amount
General Fund Non-major Governmental Fund $ 50,600
Non-major Governmental Fund General Fund 101,000
Artesia Towne Center Enterprise Fund General Fund 478,191
$ 629,791

Transfers to and from the General Fund are to offset expenditures made in the General Fund for the non-
major special revenue funds and vise versa.

7. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Deficit Fund Balance

At June 30, 2019, the following funds had a deficit fund balance:

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund:

Clean Air Bus Grant $ (4,998)
Parks and Recreation Grants (211,888)
Artesia Lighting District (8,135)
Metro TOD 4 (21,116)

The Special Revenue Funds with deficit fund balances will be reimbursed in future fiscal years for deficits
incurred as part of operations from the General Fund.
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7. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES, Continued
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Excess of expenditures over appropriations occurred at individual departmental levels and major categories
during the fiscal year 2019 as follows:

Excess
Expenditures
Actual Budgeted Over
Amounts Amounts Appropriations
Major Funds:
General Fund:
Public safety $ 4154411 $ 3,904562 $ 249,849
Parks and recreation 956,034 920,744 35,290
Public works 878,969 800,782 78,187
Community development 424,006 360,529 63,477
Capital outlay 2,337,609 2,337,609
Non-major Governmental Special Revenue Funds:
Proposition A 429,467 336,767 92,700
California Beverage Recycling 36,088 5,000 31,088
Parks and Recreation Grants 353,922 353,922

Existing resources, including the unassigned fund balance were utilized to fund the excess expenditures
over appropriations.

8. RETIREMENT PLANS
A. General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions
under the Plan are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on
years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total
service are eligible to retire- at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for
non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic
Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

Benefits Provided (Continued)

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Prior to On or After

Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1,2013

Benefit formula 2% @60 2%@62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life mon thly for life
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.092% t0 2.418% 10% t025%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 8.738% 6.25%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2019, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of the City Miscellaneous Plan as follows:

Proportionate
Share of Net
Pension Liability

$ 3,092,846
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update procedures. The
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined.

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2018
were as follows:

City Miscellaneous

Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.05112%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.08207%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.03095%

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $105,958. At
June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 193,377 $ -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 15,290
Differences based on actual experience 78,285
Differences based on change of assumptions 266,180
Differences between actual vs proportionate contribution (348,862)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 354,608
Total $ 907,740 $ (348,862)

$193,377 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued
Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2020 $ 195,088
2021 143,883
2022 54,349
2023 {27,818)
Total $ 365,502

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 3.30%-14.20% (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% (2)

Mortality Derived using CalPERS'

Membership Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017
valuation were based on the results of a January 2015 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. To determine whether the
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress
tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the
current 7.15 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not
necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public
Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be
obtained from the CalPERS website.
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

Discount Rate, Continued

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds” asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Year 1 -  Real Return Years
Asset Class Allocation 10(a) 11+(b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100.00%
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or
1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 5,018,091
Current Discount Rate 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,092,846
1% Increase 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,503,588

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued CalPERS financial reports.

C. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019, the City had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Description

The City provides retiree medical benefits under the CalPERS health plan, which provides medical
insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses in accordance with various labor agreements. Copies
of the CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained at CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street,
Sacramento, CA 95814.

Benefits Provided

Employees become eligible to retire under PEMHCA and receive lifetime City-paid healthcare benefits
upon attainment of age 50 and 5 years of covered PERS service, or by attaining qualifying disability
retirement status. The City contributes 100% of the cost of retiree coverage and 50% of the cost of dependent
coverage, for medical and dental insurance. Vision insurance is offered on a self-paid basis. Survivor
benefits are paid until all covered dependents are either deceased or no longer eligible because of age
limitations.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued
Eligibility

For employees hired before May 1, 2015 and retiring after that date, the City's contribution will be limited to
the Cafeteria Plan contribution on behalf of active employees in the year of retirement. The 2019
contribution cap amounts are $760 per month for single coverage, $980 per month for employee plus one,
and $1,275 per month for family coverage.

Employees hired after May 1, 2015 must have at least 10 years of service to be eligible for City-paid retiree
health benefits. Benefits for these retirees will be limited to $560 per month for single coverage, $730 per
month for retiree plus one, and $975 per month for family coverage. Regardless of date of hire or date of
retirement, eligible retirees receive a minimum City contribution equal to the statutory minimum employer
contribution under PEMHCA ($133/mo. for 2018 and $136/mo. for 2019). The City also pays a 0.23% of
premium administrative fee on behalf of employees and retirees.

The table below presents a summary of the basic participant information for the active and retired

participants covered under the terms of the Plan.
Valuation
Date

Participants eligible for OPEB June 30, 2019

Inactive plan members currently receiving payments 28

Active plan members 36

Total 64
Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the City are established and amended by the City. The
required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Actuarial Method and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified.

Salary increases
Inflation rate
Healthcare cost trend rate

3.00 percent

3.00 percent

5.90 percent far 2019; 5.80 percent for 2020; 5.70 percent for 2021; and
5.00 percent for 2028 and later vears

tong-Term
Expected Retum of Fidelity GO AA
Plan investments 20 Years
Reporting Date Measurement Date {if any) Municipal Index Discount Rate
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 4.00% 3.62% 3.62%
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 4.00% 3.13% 3.13%
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued
Total OPEB Liability

The following tables show the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost, the amount paid by the
employer as benefits came due, and changes in the OPEB liability for fiscal year June 30, 2019. The City’s
total OPEB liability of $6,695,567 was measured as of June 30, 2019, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Discount Rate

Per GASB guidance, the single rate that produces the same present of expected benefit payments as 1) the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets during the period when projected assets are sufficient to
pay future retiree benefits, and 2) the 20 year municipal bond rate after assets are projected to be exhausted.
The Fidelity 20 year Municipal GO AA Index is used because it meets the GASB requirements and is based
on a large amount municipal security data.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability

Service Caost 218,038

Interest 222 388

Changes of benefit terms 0

Difference between expected and actual experience 0

Changes of assumptions 434,702

Benefit payments® (207,850}
Net change in total OPEB liability 667 278

Total OPEB liability — June 30, 2018 $6.028,289

Total OPEB liability - June 30, 2018 $6,695 567

There is sensitivity of the total OPEB liability due to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend
rates. The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using the discount and trend rate that were 1 percentage point lower
or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount and healthcare cost trend rates.

Discount Rate

1% Decrease
(2.13%)

Discount Rate
(3.13%}

1% Increase
{4.13%)

Net OPEB liability {asset) 7,735,451

13,605,567

5,852,400

Healthcare Trend Rate

1% Decrease
(4.90% decreasing
t0 4.00%)

Trend Rate
(5.90% decreasing
to 5.00%)

1% Increase
(6.90% decreasing
10 6.00%)

Net OPEB liability (asset} 5,973,320

5,695,567

7,438,835
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10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY, AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION
A. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement

The City of Artesia is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Authority). The
Authority is composed of 118 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement
pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and
administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and
to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. The Authority began
covering claims of its members in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its
representative on the Board of Directors which operates through a nine-member Executive Committee.

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority

Each member pays an annual contribution to cover estimated losses for the coverage period. A
retrospective adjustment is then conducted annually thereafter, for coverage years 2012-13 and prior.
Retrospective adjustments are scheduled to continue indefinitely on coverage years 2012-13 and prior, until
all claims incurred during those coverage years are closed, on a pool-wide basis. This subsequent cost
re-allocation among members, based on actual claim development, can result in adjustments of either
refunds or additional deposits required. Coverage years 2013-14 and forward are not subject to routine
annual retrospective adjustment.

The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and
pre-funded through the annual contribution. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure
(payroll) and experience (claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. Additional
information regarding the cost allocation methodology is provided below.

Liability: In the liability program, claims are pooled separately between police and general government
exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable
credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the
weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $30,000
for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.
(3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from $30,000 to $750,000 for each occurrence and is
evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from
$750,000 to $50 million, are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second
loss layers. For 2018-19, the Authority’s pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to
$20 million, and excess insurance to $50 million. The Authority’s reinsurance contracts are subject to the
following additional pooled retentions: (a) 50% of the $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible in the
$3 million x/s $2 million layer, (b) 50% quota share of the $3 million x/s $2 million layer, and (c) $3 million
annual aggregate deductible in the $5 million x/s $10 million layer.

The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is $50 million per occurrence.
Costs of covered claim for subsidence losses have a sub-limit of $30 million per occurrence.
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10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY, AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION PROTECTION, Continued
B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority, Continued

Workers” Compensation Coverage: The City of Artesia also participates in the workers” compensation pool
administered by the Authority. In the workers’ compensation program claims are pooled separately
between public safety (police and fire) and general government exposures. (1) The payroll of each member
is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each
member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the
formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is
evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second of losses
includes incurred costs from $50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the
pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs in excess from $100,000 to statutory
limits are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.

For 2018-19 the Authority’s pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to statutory
limits under California Workers” Compensation Law.

Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million. Coverage from $2million to
$5 million is purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to
$10 million are pooled among members.

C. Purchased Insurance

Pollution Legal Liability Insurance - The City of Artesia participates in the pollution legal liability insurance
program (formerly called environmental insurance) which is available through the Authority. The policy
covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of
Artesia. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $50,000 deductible. The Authority has a limit of
$50 million for the 3-year period from July 1, 2018 through July 1, 2020. Each member of the Authority has a
$10 million sub-limit during the 3-year term of the policy.

Property Insurance - The City of Artesia participates in the all-risk property protection program of the
Authority. This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Artesia
property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City of Artesia
to the Authority. City of Artesia property currently has all-risk property insurance protection in the amount
of $20,098,105. There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance
which has a $1,000 deductible. Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to
retrospective adjustments.

Earthquake and Flood Insurance - The City of Artesia purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a
portion of its property. The earthquake insurance is part of the property protection insurance program of
the Authority. City of Artesia property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of $18,531,170.
There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000. Premiums for the
coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.
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10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY, AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION, Continued

Crime Insurance - The City of Artesia purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with
a $2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority. Premiums are paid annually
and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.

D. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were no significant reductions in pooled or
insured liability coverage in the fiscal year 2018-19.

11. CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCIES

The California Legislature adopted AB X1 26 in June 2011, adding Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161)
and Part 1.85 (commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code.
Part 1.8 immediately suspended the power of California redevelopment agencies to engage in most
activities, except to implement existing contracts, meet already-incurred obligations, preserve existing
assets and prepare for impending dissolution. Pursuant to Part 1.85, all redevelopment agencies in the State
were dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and a successor agency was established for each former
redevelopment agency to wind-down the affairs of its former redevelopment agency.

Since AB X1 26, there have been several amendments and additions the provisions of Parts 1.8 and 1.85,
including among others, AB 1484 adopted in June 2012 and SB 107, adopted in September 2016, after the
audited period of these financial statements. Parts 1.8 and 1.85, as amended and supplemented, are
referred to below as the “Dissolution Act.”

Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the city which formed a redevelopment agency serves as the successor
agency unless the city elects to do otherwise.

On August 29, 2011, the City Council of the City of Artesia adopted Resolution No. 11-2299 electing for the
City to serve as the Successor Agency. The Dissolution Act specifies that the City and the Successor Agency
do not merge as the result of this election. The City and Successor Agency are separate legal entities. The
liabilities of the Former RDA (and the Successor Agency) do not transfer to the City and the assets of the
Successor Agency do not become the assets of the City.

The role of the successor agencies is to administer the wind down of each Dissolved RDA which includes
making payments due on enforceable obligations, disposing of the assets (other than housing assets).

The Dissolution Act also created an oversight board for each successor agency. The Dissolution Act

requires that certain successor agency actions are subject to the oversight board’s approval. The oversight
board may also direct the successor agency to take certain actions.
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11. CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES, Continued

The Dissolution Act allowed the sponsoring community that formed the Dissolved RDA to elect to assume
the housing functions and take over the certain housing assets of the Dissolved RDA. If the sponsoring
community does not elect to become the Successor Housing Agency and assume the Dissolved RDA's
housing functions, such housing functions and all related housing assets will be transferred to the local
housing authority in the jurisdiction. On February 13, 2012, the City Council of the City of Artesia, adopted
Resolution No. 12-2316 electing for the City not to serve as the Housing Successor and determined that the
housing functions of the Former RDA shall be transferred to the Artesia Housing Authority pursuant to the
Dissolution Act.

The housing assets, obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are reported
in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund in the financial statements of the City. All other assets,
obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are reported in a fiduciary fund
(private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.

The Dissolution Act also establish roles for the County Auditor-Controller, the California Department of
Finance (the “DOF”) and the California State Controller’s office in the dissolution process and the
satisfaction of enforceable obligations of the Dissolved RDAs.

The County Auditor-Controller is charged with establishing a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (the
“RPTTF”) for each Successor Agency and depositing into the RPTTF the amount of property taxes that
would have been redevelopment property tax increment had the Dissolved RDA not been dissolved.
Moneys in the RPTTF, after payment of certain administrative costs of the County, are disbursed twice a
year (January 2 and June 1, respectively) to pay: (i) the taxing entities for pass-through payments, (ii) the
Successor Agency for payments of enforceable obligations on the Successor Agency’s Recognized
Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) as approved by the DOF (discussed below), (iii) the Successor
Agency for its administrative cost allowance, as defined and up to the amount allowed by the Dissolution
Act, and (iv) the taxing entities to the extent that there is any residual amount remaining in the RPTTF after
application based on the foregoing.

The Successor Agency is required to prepare a ROPS approved by the oversight board setting forth the
amounts due for each enforceable obligation during each fiscal period covered by such ROPS. The ROPS is
submitted to the DOF for approval. The County Auditor-Controller will make payments to the Successor
Agency from the RPTTF fund based on the ROPS amount approved by the DOF. Through fiscal
year 2015-16, each ROPS covered a six-month period (commencing January 1 and July 1, respectively).
SB 107, which was enacted in September 2016, provides that, beginning with fiscal year 2016-17, the
Successor Agency must prepare a ROPS annually (instead of twice a year).

The Dissolution Act required the Successor Agency to have due diligence reviews of both the low and
moderate income housing fund and all other funds to be completed by October 15, 2012 and
January 15, 2013 to compute the funds (cash) which were not needed by the Successor Agency to be
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11. CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES, Continued

retained to pay for existing enforceable obligations. These unencumbered cash amounts were to be remitted
to the CAC after the DOF completed its review of the due diligence reviews. The former redevelopment
agency (Successor Agency) made payments totaling $538,184 during fiscal year 2012-13 to the CAC as a
result of the due diligence reviews.

The DOF issued a Finding of Completion on April 18,2013 in which DOF concurred that the Successor
Agency has made full payments of any payments required as a result of the due diligence reviews. After
receiving the Finding of Completion, the Successor Agency is allowed to place loan agreements between the
former redevelopment agency and the City on the ROPS, as an enforceable obligation, provided the
oversight board makes a finding that the loan was for legitimate redevelopment purposes. The Successor
Agency does not have any such outstanding loan repayable to the City. It should be noted that, however,
during any ROPS period, the City may loan funds to the Successor Agency for the payment of
administrative costs or enforceable obligations, subject to the limitations set forth in the Dissolution Act.
The Dissolution Act also provides that, after the Successor Agency’s receipt of the Finding of Completion,
the Successor Agency may use unspent proceeds from bonds issued by the Dissolved RDA before
January 1, 2011 on projects, in a manner consistent with original bond covenants. With the Oversight Board
and the DOF’s approval, the Successor Agency and the City have entered into agreements (the “Bond
Proceeds Funding Agreements”), pursuant which the Successor Agency agreed to transfer bond proceeds to
the City, for the City’s use (including reimbursement for any City advances therefore) to complete work
with respect to specified projects in a manner consistent with the bond covenants. During the year ended
June 30, 2015, the Successor Agency transferred $183,881 of bond proceeds to the City pursuant to the Bond
Proceeds Funding Agreements.

In addition, the Oversight Board approved the Successor Agency’s Long Range Property Management
Program (LRPMP) through resolution OB 13-20 on March 28, 2013, which was then approved by the DOF
on March 7, 2015. The LRPMP included certain real properties originally purchased with funds of the
Dissolved RDA, but were owned by the City. In its March 7, 2015 letter approving the LPRMP, the DOF
recognized that the City is the fee title holder of these real properties. The DOF noted that the Successor
Agency did not need to include such properties on the LRPMP, because the Successor Agency did not own
any interest in such properties. Accordingly, the amount associated with these properties, $5,329,406, is
now shown as the City’s assets. This was reflected as a transfer of $2,033,445 from the Successor Agency’s
assets to the City’s assets, in fiscal year 2013-2014, and a prior period adjustment of $3,295,961, in fiscal
year 2014-2015.

The State Controller of the State of California has been directed to review the transfers of assets between
Dissolved RDA and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body that received
such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those
assets, the State Controller is required to order the assets to be returned to the successor agency to the extent
not prohibited by state or federal law. The State Controller issued its official final report regarding
unallowed asset transfers, by the Dissolved RDA to other public agencies on November 26,2014. The
report did not identify any unallowable transfers.
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12. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES

The assets and liabilities of the former Redevelopment Agency were transferred to the Successor Agency to
the City of Artesia Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012 as a result of the dissolution of the former
Redevelopment Agency. The City is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the assets and liabilities. Disclosures
related to these transactions are as follows:

Capital Assets

There were no capital asset activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Long-Term Liabilities

Balance at Balance at Due Within
June 30,2018 Additions Repayments June 30,2019 One Year
2007 Tax Allocation Bonds 5 11,155,000 3 - § (240,000) § 10915000 § 250,000
Less: Issuance Discount (199,004) 8,150 (190,854) (8,150)
2009 Housing Tax Allocation Bonds 3,220,000 (35,000) 3,185,000 40,000

Total $ 14,175,996 $ - 5 (266,850) §$ 13909146 § 281,850

Long-term liabilities activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds

On December 5, 2007, the Agency issued $12,920,000 in Tax Allocation Bonds for the purpose of financing
certain redevelopment activities benefiting the Artesia Redevelopment Project Area in the City. The bonds
mature annually on June 1, from 2008 to 2042, in amounts ranging from $115,000 to $600,000. $854,574 is
maintained in a reserve account that meets conditions as set forth in the Bond Indenture. The principal
balance outstanding at June 30, 2019 was $10,915,000.

Original bond issuance discount on the bonds was $285,264, and the unamortized balance of the discount as
of June 30, 2019 was $190,854.

The 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds are payable solely from taxes received by the Successor Agency on behalf of

the former Redevelopment Agency. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was
$19,571,754. Principal and interest paid for the current year was $854,556.
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Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

The annual requirements to amortize the 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2019, are as
follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 250,000 $ 602,134 § 852,134
2021 260,000 589,216 849,216
2022 275,000 575,760 850,760
2023 290,000 560,750 850,750
2024 305,000 544,936 849,936
2025 - 2029 1,800,000 2,455,627 4,255,627
2030 - 2034 2,355,000 1,899,796 4,254,796
2035 - 2039 3,085,000 1,169,305 4,254,305
2040 - 2042 2,295,000 259,230 2,554,230

Totals $ 10,915,000 $ 8,656,754 $ 19,571,754

2009 Tax Allocation Bonds

On June 30, 2009, the Agency issued $3,470,000 in Housing Tax Allocation Bonds for the purpose of
financing low and moderate income housing projects of the Agency. The bonds mature annually on June 1,
from 2012 to 2046, in amounts ranging from $40,000 to $265,000. Interest is payable semiannually on June 1
and December 1, with a yield of 7.70%. $286,030 is maintained in a reserve account that meets conditions as
set forth in the Bond Indenture. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2019 was $3,185,000.

The 2009 Tax Allocation Bonds are payable solely from the taxes received by the Successor Agency on
behalf of the former Redevelopment Agency. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the
bonds is $7,827,333. Principal and interest paid for the current year was $282,940.

The annual requirements to amortize the 2009 Housing Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2019,
are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 40,000 $ 245,245  $ 285,245
2021 45,000 242,165 287,165
2022 45,000 239,085 284,085
2023 50,000 235,620 285,620
2024 55,000 231,770 286,770
2025 - 2029 345,000 1,093,400 1,438,400
2030 - 2034 495,000 947,870 1,442,870
2035 - 2039 715,000 737,275 1,452,275
2040 - 2044 1,030,000 433,510 1,463,510
2045 - 2046 365,000 59,675 424,675

Totals $ 3,185000 $ 4465615 $ 7,650,615
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Lawsuits

The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of
conducting City business. City management believes that these cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to
result in a material adverse financial impact on the City with the exception of the case noted below.
Additionally, City management believes that the City’s insurance programs are sufficient to cover any
potential losses should an unfavorable outcome materialize.

A lawsuit is currently pending against the City entitled Herrera, et al v. City of Artesia. The lawsuit
involves claims for City payment of a portion of medical insurance costs for certain former employees and
their dependents. The potential liability and loss to the City in the event of court decision adverse to the
City in the lawsuit is unknown at this time.

B. Federal and State Grant Programns

The City has received Federal and State grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the respective governments. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowance under grant
terms, any required reimbursements are not expected to be material.

C. Commitments

As of June 30, 2019, the City did not have any commitments and, in the opinion of City management, there
were no additional outstanding matters that would have a significant effect on the financial position of the
funds of the City.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, the City may be negatively impacted by the effects of the worldwide
coronavirus pandemic. The City is closely monitoring its operations, liquidity, and reserves and is actively
working to minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented situation. As of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, the full impact to the City’s financial position is not known.

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City Manager has resigned.
The City is currently in the search for a new City Manager while the role is being filled by a Interim City

Manager.

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, in May of 2022, the Successor Agency has refunded both the 2007 Tax
Allocations Bonds as well as the 2009 Housing Tax Allocation Bonds.
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CITY OF ARTESIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

JUNE 30,2019

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 Years*

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position
Plan's total pension liability

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
total pension liability

Notes to Schedule

June 30, 2018  June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

0.08207% 0.05112%
$ 3,092,846 § 2,015,175
$ 1,462,122 $ 1,456,843

211.53% 138.32%

$ 11,139,639 § 6,172,484
$ 14,232,486 § 8,187,659
78.27% 75.39%

0.07287%
$ 2,605,653

§ 1,437,166

181.30%
$ 10,016,378

$ 12,622,031

79.36%

0.06597% 0.08779%

§ 1,900,640 $ 2,169,712
$ 1,562,635 § 1,499,322
121.63% 144.71%

$ 10,661,524 $ 10,323,534
$ 12,562,164 § 12,493,246
84.87% 82.63%

Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted
from plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2013 as they have minimal cost impact. This applies for
voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a Golden

Handshakes).

Change in Assumptions: In the 2016 valuation, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65

percent to 7.15 percent.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1*' year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown.



CITY OF ARTESIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2019

Schedule of Pension Contributions — Last 10 Years*

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Contractual required contribution (actuarially

determined) $ 193,376 § 105,958 § 99,359 § 102,746 §$ 122,602
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions (193,376) (105,958) (99,359) (102,746) (122,602)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Covered employee payroll § 1,523,499 § 1,462,122 § 1,456,843 § 1,437,166 $ 1,562,635

Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll 12.69% 7.25% 6.82% 7.15% 7.85%

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date: June 30, 2017

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Inflation 2.75%

3.30% to 14.20% depending on agg,
service, and type of employment
7.50%, net of pension plan investment

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return and administrative Expenses; includes
Inflation
o Derived using CalPERS' Membership

Mortality Rate Table Data for all Funds

(UThe mortality table was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer
to the 2014 experience study report.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1* year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown.
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JUNE 30, 2019

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios — Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending

Total OPEB Liability 6/30/2019 6/30/2018
Service cost $ 218,038 § 211,687
Interest 222,388 214,547
Changes of assumptions 434,702
Benefit payments (207,850) (223,948)
Net change in total OPEB liability 667,278 202,286
Total OPEB Liability - beginning of fiscal year 6,028,289 5,826,003
Total OPEB Liability - end of fiscal year 3 6,695,567 $ 6,028,289
Covered payroll S 2,312,883 § 2,087,473
Total OPEB Liability as a % ofeligible payroll 289.5% 288.8%

Notes to Schedule

Funding Policy: The City funds the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. No assets are accumulated in a trust.
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*Fiscal year 2018 was the 1* year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.

Schedule of OPEB Employer Contributions — Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending

6/30/2019 6/30/2018
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC)l N/A N/A
Contributions in relation to the ADC N/A N/A
Contribution deficiency (excess) N/A N/A
OPEB-eligible payroll for reporting period (fiscal year) $ 2,312,883 5 2,087,473
Contributions as a percent of payroll N/A N/A

' Per GASB 75 paragraph 57c., these disclosures are only required if the employer calculates an Actuarially
Determined Contribution (ADC). The City does not currently calculate an ADC.

*Fiscal year 2018 was the 1* year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City Council has the responsibility for adoption of the City’s budget. Budgets are adopted for
governmental funds. From the effective date of the budget, the City Manager is authorized to transfer
funds from one major expenditure category to another within the same department. Any revisions that
alter the total expenditures of any department must be approved by the City Council.

All appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent that they have not been expended. Lease
contracts entered into by the City are subject to annual review by the City Council; hence, they legally are

one year contracts with an option to renew for another fiscal year.

Budget accounts reported for the governmental funds of the City are adopted on a basis consistent with
GAAP.

General Budget Policies

The City Council approves each year's budget submitted by the City Manager prior to the beginning of the
new fiscal year. The Council conducts public meetings prior to its adoption. The budget is prepared by
fund, function and activity and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested
appropriations for the next fiscal year. Supplemental appropriations, when required during the period, are
also approved by the Council. Intradepartmental budget changes are approved by the City Manager.
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the departmental level. At fiscal year-end, all operating
budget appropriations lapse. During the fiscal year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The City did not adopt a budget for the following Non-major Governmental Special Revenue Funds:

Federal STP-L, Parks & Recreation Grants, Hazard & Litigation, Traffic Congestion, MAP 21 Exchange,
Clean Air Bus Grant, Billboard, Sheriff, SB1, HOME and CFD.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 9,102,843 $ 9,102,843 $ 9,102,843 5 -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 6,562,713 6,562,713 6,988,888 426,175
Licenses and permits 486,950 486,950 538,854 51,904
Intergovernmental 859,188 859,188 1,004,497 145,309
Charges for services 586,950 586,950 348,894 (238,056)
Use of money and property 232,000 232,000 429,265 197,265
Fines and forfeitures 105,500 105,500 206,202 100,702
Other revenues 76,000 76,000 16,691 (59,309)
Amount available for appropriation 8,909,301 8,909,301 9,533,291 623,990
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
General government 3,668,372 3,668,372 3,578,872 89,500
Public safety 3,904,562 3,904,562 4,154,411 (249,849)
Parks and recreation 920,744 920,744 956,034 (35,290)
Public works 800,782 800,782 878,969 (78,187)
Community development 360,529 360,529 424,006 (63,477)
Capital outlay 2,337,609 (2,337,609)
Total charges to appropriations 9,654,989 9,654,989 12,329,901 (2,674,912)
Transfers in 869,064 869,064 579,191 (289,873)
Transfers out (50,600) (50,600) (50,600)
Total transfers 818,464 818,464 528,591 (289,873)
Excess of resources over
charges to appropriations 72,776 72,776 (2,268,019) (2,340,795)
Fund balance, June 30 5 9,175,619 $ 9,175,619 $ 6,834,824 $ (2,340,795)

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

State Gas Tax - To account for any street or road purpose including maintenance and construction, engineering
and administration apportioned under the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California.

Federal STP-L - To account for leftover County exchange of STPL monies for street related projects.

Bicycle & Pedestrian - To account for funds received for improvements made for planning and construction of
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Proposition A - To account for the benefit of public transit such as dial-a-ride and recreation transportation
programs.

Community Development Block Grant - To account for grant funds received for programs that assist low- and
moderate-income residents with single family housing rehabilitation.

Parks and Recreation Grants ~ To receive grant funds used to update and make park improvements not accounted
in other funds.

HOME - To receive grant funds as part of the HOME program

Proposition C - To account for the benefit of public transit with expanded street maintenance and improvements
such as traffic signal, marking and striping, median maintenance and matching dollars for street improvement
grants.

Air Quality - To account for AB2766 Subvention Program funds to implement programs that reduce air pollution
from motor vehicles.

Hazard and Litigation - is a special revenue fund and accounts for grant funding of Federal awarded highway
transportation and safety improvement projects.

California Beverage Recycling ~ To account for funds awarded by State to provide litter/recycling clean-up,
education and community outreach.

SB1 - To account for revenue and expenditures associated with State Assembly Bill 1 funding for streets and roads.

Artesia Lighting District - To account for property tax direct assessments used for maintenance, operation, and
repair of street lights and signal expenditures.

Traffic Congestion - To account for funding received for transportation projects that improve traffic mobility and

relieve congestion.

MAP 21 Exchange - An exchange of City available Federal Surface Transportation Program-Local Funds (STP-L
Funds) for like amount of Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA Funds). These
are flexible funds for transportation capital improvements that would normally qualify for the STP-L program.




NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Clean Air Bus Grant - To account for federal grant to purchase electric bus.
Measure M - To account for funds received for public transit system improvements.

Billboard ~ To account for city license fee on development agreement for 15 annual installments of double-sided
Outdoor Advertising structure.

Sheriff - To account for the forfeiture and seizure assets collected in the City of Artesia by the contract policing
agency and primarily used for law enforcement equipment and training.

Metro TOD 4 - To account for grant funds received for transit-oriented development planning for downtown
Artesia.

C.O.PS. Grant - To account for supplemental Jaw enforcement services funding of frontline law enforcement and
juvenile justice programs.

Community Facility District - To account for taxes collected within the district which pay for public safety, flood,
and storm protection services as well as maintenance of lighting, parkways, streets, roads, and open spaces.

Measure R - To account for the engineering, administrative, traffic median, and parking overflow improvements
of transportation services.

Housing Authority - To account for the maintenance, planning, and improvements of all low-moderate income

housing assets to assist low- and moderate-income housing families and seniors.



(penunuoD)

65

005°€ S EE6T6T TZ0°T1 § 016TI9 S 108ZEl  § L8916 $  6207T s - $  68c'ST S ¥T9'606 S Tl § ov0't9 S  P606E  $ SIdUE[Rq PUNJ PUE SMOPUT
Po119JaP ‘SANIfIqel] [RI0L
(ser'g) £€6'T6T +LO'1L 016°CL9 L08'ZEL 6€8°005 620°C (888°112) 0v6'£68 UL 9v0'c9 L1LVLE sddue[eq punjy [eio],
(se1'g) (888'117) pausisseun
Kayes anqng
PL0'11 016C19 108°4E1 spodfosd Ayenb ary
620'T syoafosd Buisnopg
6£8°005 0v6'268 'L s12foud voneyrodsuesy,
££6°C6T 9b0°c9 LILbLE spelord 10015
EO“— _uugu_.:mwz
:sdduefeq pung
SE9'11 86951 898'11C 68T'ST 8911 - STT9l SeIIqel {PI0L
888'117 68TST spury sayjo o) anQ
ajqefed yisodagp
SEY'IL s - - s - s - S 8E9'SL s - s - s - S  18Y°LL s - s - §  sTT9L $ s)qeded sjunoday
SOTIIqer]
SADNVIVE AN
ANV SMOTINI GI9HA49d ‘SILLITIAVIT
005'c $  £E6'T6T v20'11 $ 0l6TI9 § 1086l § ZZ¥9I6 S 620¢ s - $  68T'ST S bT9'606 § TwL $ 9r0t9  § Tre06e S S1955® [RJO],
$ST'L s 68T'ST €56 sjunosIy
1S3[qeAIFINT
WTT $  £E6'T6e vLO'LL $ 016T19 § PSITEL  $  ZLH9IS S 6T0T § - s - ¥29'606 $  wUTL S 90'e9 S 68588 $ SIUBWISIAUT pUE YseD)
SISV
jisiEitgl 1S Buiploay puny Append iy D uonsodoig INOH sjuey juesn Yo[gq v uonisodosg ueLsaps T-d1IS Xe[ seq)ajelg
Bunydry aBvianag uopvdny uoiralddy wdwdopaaag » apdog 1esapa]
eISajy vIuIojfijeD) 2 pLezeyy 2 syleg Lunuruoy
anuaady jeadg
610T ‘o€ dun{

spuny [eJUdUIUISA0L) JO[eA-UON
199G asueeq Suruiquo))

BIS?IY JO 31D



09

698'628't § BIETSS §  OIL0LE S beo'Ll $ 7689 S 9tF $  6I€68CT 5  96F0EY s - $ o00L'rsl § L6l s5adUe[Rq pURy U SMOLJUT
PaLIDJIP ‘SAMIqE] [RIOL,
SCSLER'E €Th'eer 09T°59¢ #29°11 (06£'02) 9t 61€°68C 960t (866'F) ooL'bLL L1L'6L sajuefeq punj [ejo],
(L18's2) (062'02) (866°1) paudisseun
7£6'0¢Er 9¢t 96v°0Ek Ayogus o1qng
682194 syafosd Ajrpenb 1y
5tvet cTrTer spafosd Buisnopy
LFB'EST'T 097'59¢ 61£°697 00L'FLL LLU61 s109ford uoneysodsuesy,
0TE'THL vZ9'1t syoford 3255
110] PaIdLISAY
:SadUR[Rg pUn
FhET6E S68°19 05#'s WYL 866'F SauIIqelf [ejo],
L1869 TH9'LT 266t spuny Jay3o 01 anq
S68°19 G68°19 aiqeded yisoda
T€9°09 g - $  0SH'S s - 3 - s - s - $ - s - s - s - S a|qeded syunoioy
SIMINIqer]
SIDNVIVE ANNI
ANV SMOTINI 2MA319d ‘STLLITIGVIT
698'6¢8FY S BIEWSS & 01Z0Z S be9ll $ 7589 $ 9 S 6IE68T $  96H0EY s - $ o00L'vsl § /L6 S13sse [Plo],
985°1F 161 7589 sjunomy
:S3]qRATIIY]
€9T'83LY $  BIEHSS §  0LL0LE §  gErLL $ - S  o9¢k $  6LE6ST § 96 0ER s - $ 00L'FZL & Lit'6L $ SJUBWIISAAUL PUE {{SPD P3O0 ]
SIISSV
spun, Ajuoyny M PIysIg Arpoeg juern v Aol FHEES pieoqiig N aInseapy juern snq a3ueyoxy uopsaduo)y
jejudWwILIAA0D) Buisnoyy EILELE] O Aunwwos Sd0D oI 1y uesfd [ZJIVIN oyjes],
EolliTe)
reio],
anuaady feredg
610C ‘0¢ dun(

panunuo)) ‘spuny [EJUIWUIIA0C) I0[BN-UON
199Yg aouepeq Sururquro))

BIS3IIY JO A)1D)



(panunuo2)

19

(cer'g) $  E€6°T6C t20°LL $  016TI9 $  108'LElL $  6EBD0S $  600C $  (888'110) s - S 0v6'268 $ L 9H0'e9 S LIL'WLE $ 1vaA {eosy jo puy
- 891°0¥ +56°£9S 986°€C1 8E9°SYE (155901) L8286 SF9'e £90°09 ¥86°167 1eaf [easy jo Butuurdag
SSHONVIVE ANNT
(s€1'8) £E6'26 (F6£'67) 9c6' vy SIS'EL 10°sS1 620T (zge'son) (L68°65) 429 £86'C €ELES S2SN DNIDNVNE YIHLO
ANV STUNLIANTIXT (1IaNn)
VIAO SADUNOS ONIDNVNEH
WIHLO ANV SINNTATY
00905 (000'D) (sasn) sasinos Guueuyy 1ayjo jejo ],
000’1 no s1djsuesy
00905 Ul sIBjSURL |
HSASN) SADUNOS ONIDNVNIL ¥IHLO
(5££'89) £€6'T6T (r6£°82) 956"+ S1g'el 10T'551 620°C (£gg's0D) (£68°6€) 229 £86'C £e1'es STUNIIANIIXE (HIANN)
YIAO SANNITATY
SHE'P6L 880°6E SH1L SLTFL 9ee TT6'ESE T8 L9V'6et FAZ K4 07697 samyrpuadxa eio],
L3011 000'6€1 TT6'ESE 166°CZE L¥L'ET ¥0L'1 Lepino reyide
StEV6E 9EE 708 juswdojaaag Anununwo)
8l S/TL 9157292 SHI0M DHAN
9/+901 uoHealdaI pue SIv|
880°GE Juawu12A08 p1ausn
JuaLInyy
STUANLIANTIXT
019'sel ££6°T6C ¥69'9 986t 097°sT 9.¥°10€ S9ET G8S'8reT 08 05'68¢ tLLET £86°C £6£'76€ SanuaAs (P10
61 st
+69't 9/9'8T £51°9 L1 S9€°T 046°1S £86'C LE1'ET Kuiadosd pue Louowr jo asn
£E€6'T6C 000°s 08291 20161 G86'8tT 208 vLL€C 2£8°226 [eIaUILIaA0313)u]
019°6EL s - - $ - s - $  62008C s - $ - $ - $  009°/€€ s - - § - $ saxe ]
SANNIATU
s 195 JuiAday pun, Append ny > uonisodos] ANOH BUTIS) e ydopg v uotjisodoiy uriSapPa T1-d IS xe | se0) aelg
Junydrn alesanag uvonedury uoneaIday juawdoraaa() 2 9p24ig €133y
BISALLY vruIOfteD 3 prezep] 3 sy1R, Aununwony

anuaaay jeadg

6107 ‘0€ dun{ papus Ieaf [essiy ay) 104
SpUnJ [EjUdWUIIAOLY I0[RIAJ-UON

saduefeq pung ul safuey) pue ‘samjrpuadxy ‘sanuasay Jo Juswaje)g Sururquio))

BIS9)IY JO L31D)



9

GTSLEYY §  gTrTer $  09T'99E $  rTolL s - $ 06200 $ ot $  6lE'68C $  96rOLr $s (866t} $  00L'vLL §  ZIU61 $ Jead [easyy jo pug

EEE'8H9E 698°€LY <9E'tLE ST9's FEE Sty 969°291 1eh'8sl (866'F) 598691 L1161 102k (st jo Juuurdag
SSHONVIVE GNNI

61682 PS8l (so1'6) 666'S (110 17 €291l 520°7ST cET's SASN ONIDNVNE HIHLO

ANV STHNLIANAIXT (IEaNN)
UTAO SADUNOS DNIDNVNEE

VIHLO ANV STINNIATHT
(00t0S) (000°001) (sasn) saxsnos Suueury 30110 Jei0],
(000101 (000°001) N0 SI3jsURI]
00905 uj SI3JsURL]

(53$N) SADUNOS DNIDNVNII NTHLO

65°6£8 Pes'8L (c01'6) 666G 000001 L' |14 €To'IzL €20'T5T SET'® STINLIANTIXH (MAANN)
HIAO SINNIATYA
€22°268°1 6Z0'8S STL6ET LIV6P 6810 samypuadxa [r10],
£6£°950°1 909'F0T Aepino penden
£96°00€ 620'86 6810t wawdofaaag Aunwuio)
Si8°86¢ GISTE PARNG SYI0M JHqn
9/+'901 UONEIIIDI PUP SYIY ]
880°6E yawuIaA0d felouany
BUCI )
STUNLIANIIXT
S9€°269°T 64592 070°0€T 666G 000001 £€66°'2T [ zig'191 S£0'ese SET'8 SaNUIA [PI0],
64£°161 000051 atle
90F'0LT 6/5°92 8661 |14 ZIR'LT 96£°S1 SET'8 £11adoad pue Sauow jo asn
092°90€°1 000001 £66'£T 6£9'9tT JerauIIaA0319IU]
0TE'696 s - $  78ODIT $  666C s - s - $ - $ - s - $ - § - s - S soxe |
‘SINNIATYT
spuny Lioygny ] s Anjoeyg Jueln) +aol ENS pavoqiig A 2InSPap jueI) sng adueyaxg uonsaduod)
[RIUBUUIAAOT) Buisnoyy ainseapy fnunwwo) SdOD onap 11y ueap) 12 dVIN aryyel)
12710
jejo

anuaAdy Je1dadg

6102 ‘0€ dun[ papusa 1eak [edsIJ 3y} 10
panuURuo)) ‘spun,j [eJUsWIUIdA0L) 10[ey-uoN
sadueleq puny ur saduey)) pue ‘sarmpuadxy ‘sanuaaay] Jo juswaieig Jururquon)

RIS}V JO 31D



City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
State Gas Tax

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 291,584 $ 291,584 $ 291,584 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Intergovernmental 649,408 651,193 327,837 (323,356)

Use of money and property 2,985 1,200 23,137 21,937

Other 1,379 1,379
Amount available for appropriation 652,393 652,393 352,353 (300,040)

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Public Works 652,393 652,393 267,516 384,877
Total charges to appropriations 652,393 652,393 269,220 383,173
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations 83,133 83,133
Fund balance, June 30 $ 291,584 $ 291,584 $ 374,717 $ 83,133
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

CDBG
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ - - - -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 500,000 500,000 8,072 (491,928)
Amount available for appropriation 500,000 500,000 8,072 (491,928)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Community development 500,000 500,000 8,072 491,928
Total charges to appropriations 500,000 500,000 8,072 491,928

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30 $ -
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Proposition A
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 937,837 $ 937,837 $ 937,837 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 329,135 329,135 337,600 8,465
Intergovernmental 6,795 6,795 (6,795)
Use of money and property 2,016 2,016 51,970 49,954
Amount available for appropriation 337,946 337,946 389,570 51,624
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Parks and recreation 336,767 336,767 106,476 230,291
Capital outlay 322,991 (322,991)
Total charges to appropriations 336,767 336,767 429,467 (92,700)
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations 1,179 1,179 (39,897) (41,076)
Fund balance, June 30 $ 939,016 $ 939,016 3 897,940 $ (41,076)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Proposition C

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 345,638 $ 345,638 $ 345,638 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 273,009 273,009 280,029 7,020
Use of money and property 2,184 2,184 21,447 19,263
Amount available for appropriation 275,193 275,193 301,476 26,283
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 73,039 73,039 7,275 65,764
Capital outlay 285,000 285,000 139,000 146,000
Total charges to appropriations 358,039 358,039 146,275 211,764
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations (82,846) (82,846) 155,201 238,047
Fund balance, June 30 $ 262,792 $ 262,792 $ 500,839 $ 238,047
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Air Quality

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 123,986 $ 123,986 $ 123,986 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 20,000 20,000 19,107 (893)
Use of money and property 280 280 6,153 5,873
Amount available for appropriation 20,280 20,280 25,260 4,980
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 16,557 16,557 418 16,139
Capital outlay 80,000 80,000 11,027 68,973
Total charges to appropriations 96,557 96,557 11,445 85,112
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations (76,277) (76,277} 13,815 90,092
Fund balance, June 30 $ 47,709 $ 47,709 $ 137,801 3 90,092
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
California Beverage Recycling

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 40,468 $ 40,468 $ 40,468 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 5,000 5,000 5,000
Use of money and property 1,694 1,694
Amount available for appropriation 5,000 5,000 6,694 1,694
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
General government 5,000 5,000 35,088 (30,088)
Transfers out 1,000 (1,000)
Total charges to appropriations 5,000 5,000 36,088 (31,088)
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations . (29,394) (29,394)
Fund balance, June 30 3 40,468 $ 40,468 $ 11,074 $ (29,394)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

C.O.P.S. Grant
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ - - - -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 100,000 100,000 100,000
Amount available for appropriation 100,000 100,000 100,000
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety 100,000 100,000 100,000
Transfer out 100,000 (100,000)
Total charges to appropriations 100,000 100,000 100,000

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30 $ -
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Measure R
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 374,365 $ 374,365 $ 374,365 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 204,761 204,761 210,082 5,321
Use of money and property 19,938 19,938
Amount available for appropriation 204,761 204,761 230,020 25,259
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 47,952 47,952 34,519 13,433
Capital outlay 265,000 265,000 204,606 60,394
Total charges to appropriations 312,952 312,952 239,125 73,827
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations (108,191) (108,191) (9,105) 99,086
Fund balance, June 30 $ 266,174 $ 266,174 $ 365,260 $ 99,086
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Housing Authority

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 473,869 $ 473,869 $ 473,869 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Use of money and property 79,171 79,171 76,579 (2,592)

Amount available for appropriation 79,171 79,171 76,579 (2,592)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Community development 78,800 78,800 58,025 20,775
Total charges to appropriations 78,800 78,800 58,025 20,775
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations 371 371 18,554 18,183
Fund balance, June 30 $ 474,240 $ 474,240 $ 492,423 $ 18,183
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Artesia Lighting District

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ - 8 - 8 - $ -
Resources (inflows):

Taxes 139,000 139,000 135,610 (3,390)

Transfers in 50,600 50,600 50,600
Amount available for appropriation 189,600 189,600 186,210 (3,390)

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Community development ' 196,600 196,600 194,345 2,255
Total charges to appropriations 196,600 196,600 194,345 2,255
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations (8,135) (1,135)
Fund balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ (8135 % (1,135)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Bicycle & Pedestrian
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 6,645 $ 6,645 $ 6,645 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 55,268 55,268 23,774 (31,494)
Amount available for appropriation 55,268 55,268 23,774 (31,494)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 44,246 44,246 44,246
Capital Outlay 11,022 11,022 23,147 (12,125)
Total charges to appropriations 55,268 55,268 23,147 32,121
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations 627 627
Fund balance, June 30 $ 6,645 $ 6,645 $ 7,272 $ 627
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Measure M

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 178,421 $ 178,421 $ 178,421 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental 232,058 232,058 236,679 4,621
Use of money and property 2,205 2,205 15,396 13,191
Amount available for appropriation 234,263 234,263 252,075 17,812
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 46,412 46,412 46,412
Capital outlay 187,851 187,851 187,851
Total charges to appropriations 234,263 234,263 234,263
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations 252,075 252,075
Fund balance, June 30 $ 178,421 $ 178,421 $ 430,496 $ 252,075
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Metro TOD 4
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 334 334 334 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Intergovernmental 375,000 375,000 27,993 (347,007)

Amount available for appropriation 375,000 375,000 27,993 (347,007)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Public works 375,000 375,000 49,117 325,883
Total charges to appropriations 375,000 375,000 49,117 325,883
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations (21,124) (21,124)
Fund balance, June 30 334 334 (20,790) % (21,124)
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units or funds.

Trustand Agency - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City for various programs.

George Nelson Memorial - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City on behalf of the family
of George Nelson for parks and recreation programs.

Senior Citizens - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City on behalf of the Senior Citizen
activities and programs.
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City of Artesia

Combining Balance Sheet

All Agency Funds
June 30, 2019
Trust and George Nelson Senior
Agency Memorial Citizens Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,209,146 S 2,243 $ 6,272 $ 1,217,661
Accounts receivable 19,451 19,451
Total assets $ 1,228,597 $ 2,243 $ 6,272 $ 1,237,112
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 38,958 $ - $ - $ 38,958
Deposits payable 1,189,639 2,243 6,272 1,198,154
Total liabilities $ 1,228,597 $ 2,243 $ 6,272 $ 1,237,112
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City of Artesia

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Trust and Agency

Assets:

Cash and investmernts

Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Account payable
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

George Nelson Memorial

Assets:
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities:
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

Senior Citizens

Assets:

Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities:

Deposits payable

Total liabilities

Totals - All Agency Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Account payable
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Addition Deductions June 30, 2019

1,106,748 $ 110,262 (7,864) 1,209,146
20,979 19,451 (20,979) 19,451
1,127,727 $ 129,713 (28,843) 1,228,597
28,843 $ 38,958 (28,843) 38,958
1,098,884 90,755 1,189,639
1,127,727 $ 129,713 (28,843) 1,228,597
2,243 $ - - 2,243
2,243 $ - - 2,243
2,243 5 - - 2,243
2,243 $ - - 2,243
7,272 $ - (1,000) 6,272
7,272 $ - (1,000) 6,272
7,272 $ - (1,000) 6,272
7,272 $ - (1,000) 6,272
1,116,263 $ 110,262 (8,864) 1,217,661
20,979 19,451 (20,979) 19,451
1,137,242 $ 129,713 (29,843) 1,237,112
28,843 $ 38,958 (28,843) 38,958
1,108,399 90,755 (1,000) 1,198,154
1,137,242 $ 129,713 (29,843) 1,237,112
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PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES
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TRAVIS J HOLE, CPA

Members of the City Council
City of Artesia
Artesia, California

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Artesia (City),
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weakness and therefore, significant deficiencies or material weakness may exist that were not
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit, we identified the deficiencies presented in the current
year recommendation section as Finding 2019-01 that we consider to be a material weakness and 2019-02 to
2019-07 that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control.

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the current year recommendations
section. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. In addition, we would be pleased to discuss the
recommendations in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to
assist you in implementing these recommendations.
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We have included in this letter a summary of communications with the members of the City Council as
required by professional auditing standards. We would like to thank the City’s management and staff for
the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during the course of our engagement. The accompanying
communications and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use of management,
the members of the City Council, and others within the City, and are not intended to be, and should not
be, used by anyone other these specified parties.

Appet, Kews V raal oo’

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP
Culver City, CA
August 15, 2022
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TRAVIS JHOLE, CPA

August 15, 2022

Members of the City Council
City of Artesia
Artesia, California

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Artesia (City) as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with the information about our
responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 26, 2021.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements.
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management has made estimates of the funding progress and net pension liability of CalPERS, the
estimated historical cost and useful lives of capital assets, estimated allowances for doubtful accounts,
estimates regarding contingent liabilities, and the assumptions used for estimating the other
postemployment benefits liability. These estimates are based on CalPERS’ actuarial estimates for net
pension liability, historical data and industry guidelines for capital assets, historical collection data, advice
from legal counsel, and actuarial tables provided by GASB and a third party actuarial report for other
postemployment benefits payable, respectively. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the estimates above in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.
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The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We
proposed adjusting journal entries for net pension liability, and deferred inflows and outflows. All entries
proposed were accepted by management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated August 15, 2022.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual, the Schedule of Funding Progress — Post-employment Health Insurance
Benefits, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of
Contributions, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the RSI.



Other Matters (Continued)

We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual, combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds, combining statements for
nonmajor enterprise funds, combining statements for internal service funds, and combining statements for
agency funds which accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this
supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content,
and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed
from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
Hpar, Koy, ¥ Moalp o

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP
Culver City, CA
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TRAVIS J HOLE, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANICAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the City Council
City of Artesia
Avrtesia, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Artesia (City), as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did identify deficiencies, presented in the current year recommendations section as finding 2019-1
that we consider to be a material weakness in internal controls and findings 2019-2 through 2019-7, that we consider
to be significant deficiencies in internal controls. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

“Hrert, K"? VMM

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, California
August 15, 2022



CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS
Material Weakness

2019-01 Finding — Financial reports are not issued in a timely manner:
During our review of internal controls it was noted that financial statements are not being
issued by the City in a timely manner. It is also not known whether a single audit was required
during the same time period, due to the unavailability of financial data.

Effect:

The City is not in compliance with Local, State and Federal requirements regarding financial
reporting and can cause issues with various oversight agencies and make it impossible for the
City to acquire Federal and State grants and other intergovernmental funding. In addition, the
residents of the City are not being informed regarding the financial health of the City.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City ensure that the financial statements are issued within 9 months of
each fiscal year end.

Management’s Response:

The City acknowledges that staff did not complete work for the year ended June 30, 2018 in a
timely manner, which delayed the audit work for the year ended June 30, 2019. However, the
audit has now been completed. Further, audit schedules for the year ended June 30, 2020 and
June 30, 2021 have been prepared and the audit fieldwork has already begun for both years.

The City did complete other required audits for the year ended June 30, 2019; including the
annual MTA Audit of local return funds, as well as the SCAQMD audit. A single audit —
defined as an organization-wide financial statement and federal awards' audit of a non-federal
entity that expends $750,000 or more in federal funds in one year — was not performed
because the City’s federal awards expenditures for the year were less than the audit threshold
of $750,000, therefore not required.

Furthermore, once the financial statements for June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021 have been
completed, the City now has Staff in place that will ensure that financial statements for future
years will be completed in a timely manner.

Significant Deficiencies

2019-02 Finding — Bank Reconciliation not performed properly in a timely manner:
During our review of bank reconciliations, it was noted that bank reconciliations are not being
completed in a timely manner. In addition, we noted a lack of documentation of approval on
the bank reconciliations.

Effect:

When bank reconciliations are not being completed in a timely manner and there isn’t clear
documentation regarding the approval of said reconciliations, errors and misappropriations
may occur and go on occurring undetected.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City ensure that all bank reconciliations be prepared within 30 days of
the month close and that the approval of the bank reconciliation are clearly documented on
each reconciliation.




CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

2019-03

2019-04

Management’s Response:

The City acknowledges that staff did not complete work for the year ended June 30, 2019 in a
timely manner. However, as of the date of this letter, bank reconciliations are being completed
in a timely manner each month, and Finance personnel is committed to ensuring that bank
reconciliations will continue to be prepared in a timely manner, going forward.

Finding — Lack of internal control over cash receipts
During our review of cash receipts, the following were noted:

1. 13 instances where the City did not obtained updated lease agreements with a tenant while
charging them a higher rate.

2. One instance where the City did not retain grant reimbursement requests.

3. 9 instances where there was a significant delay between date of collection and day of
deposit.

4. 11 instances where rents being charged did not agree with rental agreements.

5. One instance where a fee being charged on a building permit could not be found on City’s
fee schedules.

Effect:

A lack of internal control over cash receipts can both create opportunities for misappropriation
of assets that can go undetected, as well as the possibility of charging customers rates that
were not approved by governance and/or agreed upon with the customer.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City ensure that updated rental agreements are on file for all rental
customers as well as updating cash receipting software to ensure that only council approved
fee schedules are being charged.

Management’s Response:

The City acknowledges that internal control over cash receipts for the fiscal year June 30, 2019
was lacking. 1) The City has had a dedicated review of all leases performed by an employee
and reviewed by the Deputy City Manager. New lease agreements have been executed for all
current tenants. 2) A procedure has been put in place to ensure that all grant applications and
requests for reimbursement are filed in the Finance department who ensures that the grant
paperwork is maintained properly. 3) Due to staff turnover during this fiscal year, wherein
there was staff shortages, cash was collected and stored in the safe until cash was able to be
deposited at the bank. 4) Rents did not agree with rental agree with rental agreements as during
the fiscal year, the City began charging tenants a Common Area Maintenance (CAM) fee.
However, the rental/lease agreements were not updated to reflect these new amounts. 5) Fee
schedules were not adopted for this fiscal year, but are approved for subsequent years.

Finding — Lack of internal control over payroll and personnel files
During our review of payroll and personnel files, we noted the following:

1. 14 instances where personnel action forms were either not approved properly or missing.

2. One instance where an employee’s timesheet was missing.

3. 7 instances where employee withholdings for CalPERS contributions were not made by
the employer.

4. 3instances where employee 1-9 forms were missing.



CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

2019-05

2019-06

Effect:

A lack of internal control over payroll and personnel files can create opportunities for
misappropriation of funds as well as opportunities for non-compliance with Federal, State or
local laws.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City review personnel files for all employees to ensure compliance
with human resources requirements as well as Federal, State, and local regulations. In
addition, we recommend that the City ensure that all payroll withholdings be reviewed by an
appropriate member of management for mathematical accuracy as well as regulatory
requirements.

Management’s Response:

The City acknowledges that internal control over payroll and personnel files for the fiscal year
June 30, 2019 was lacking. The City has hired a competent Human Resources Manager who
has reviewed the personnel files of each active employee to ensure that all required forms and
paperwork has been appropriately received and filed. In addition, the Finance Manager reviews
payroll reports to ensure that timesheets and employee withholding is accurate.

Finding — Investment policy not updated:

During our review of policies and procedures, it was noted that the City investment policy has
not been updated in a timely manner. The policy was lasted updated in 2010 and was required
to have been updated by 2014 per City resolution.

Effect:
Without an updated investment policy, the City is not in compliance with its own City
resolution that requires that the investment policy to be updated every 4 years.

Recommendation:
We recommend that City update its investment policy as soon as possible to be in compliance
with City resolutions.

Management’s Response:

In 2018, City staff sought and received direction from the Finance Subcommittee of the City
Council to include in the revised Investment Policy the ability for the City to invest its reserves
in Certificates of Deposit. A revised Investment Policy was drafted by staff, but was not
presented to the City Council for approval. Due to staff turnover, the adoption of an
Investment Policy has not yet been addressed. The City is currently in the process of
contracting a consultant to draft a policy for adoption by the City Council. Staff is anticipating
this process to be completed and a policy adopted by the end of the calendar year of 2022.

Finding — Stale dated checks not reviewed and updated:

During our review of the bank reconciliations, it was noted that some stale dated checks on the
bank reconciliation have been outstanding for more than 5 years. The City does not have
policies and procedures to address the checks by contacting the vendor, reissuing or submitting
to the State Controller’s office.

Effect:
They City may not be in compliance with State requirements regarding unclaimed property.
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CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

2019-07

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City review and address long outstanding checks by contacting
vendors, reissuing and submitting to the State Controller’s office as required.

Management’s Response:

The City has implemented a policy in which the outstanding checks listed on the bank
reconciliation are being handled in accordance with Section 50050 and 50051 of the
Government Code, and vendors of uncashed checks are being contacted to determine whether
the check needs to be voided and reissued.

Finding — Lack of internal control over contractor deposits:
During our review of deposits payable, it was noted that the City does not have procedures to
reconcile deposits held by the City from contractors and builders.

Effect:

A lack of internal control over deposits payable makes it impossible for the City to determine
when deposits should be returned to contractors or recognized as revenue upon completion of
a certain project or after a certain time period.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City review all deposits on an annual basis and determine the
accuracy and appropriateness of deposit accounts.

Management’s Response:

Deposits were reconciled for the year ended June 30, 2018, however, due to staff turnover, the
current fiscal year has not been ablet to be reconciled. Deposits will again be reconciled by the
end of the calendar year, 2022.
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

Material Weakness

2018-01

Finding — Financial reports are not issued in a timely manner:

During our review of internal controls it was noted that financial statements are not being
issued by the City in a timely manner. It is also not known whether a single audit was required
during the same time period, due to the unavailability of financial data.

Effect:

The City is not in compliance with Local, State and Federal requirements regarding financial
reporting and can cause issues with various oversight agencies and make it impossible for the
City to acquire Federal and State grants and other intergovernmental funding. In addition, the
residents of the City are not being informed regarding the financial health of the City.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City ensure that the financial statements are issued within 9 months of
each fiscal year end.

Current Status:
Not implemented, see Finding 2019-01

Significant Deficiencies

2018-02

2018-03

Finding — Bank Reconciliation not performed properly in a timely manner:

During our review of bank reconciliations, it was noted that bank reconciliations are not being
completed in a timely manner. In addition, we noted a lack of documentation of approval on
the bank reconciliations.

Effect:

When bank reconciliations are not being completed in a timely manner and there isn’t clear
documentation regarding the approval of said reconciliations, errors and misappropriations
may occur and go on occurring undetected.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City ensure that all bank reconciliations be prepared within 30 days of
the month close and that the approval of the bank reconciliation are clearly documented on
each reconciliation.

Current Status:

Finding — Investment policy not updated:

During our review of policies and procedures, it was noted that the City investment policy has
not been updated in a timely manner. The policy was lasted updated in 2010 and was required
to have been updated by 2014 per City resolution.

Effect:
Without an updated investment policy, the City is not in compliance with its own City
resolution that requires that the investment policy to be updated every 4 years.

Recommendation:
We recommend that City update its investment policy as soon as possible to be in compliance
with City resolutions.

12



2018-04

Current Status:

Not implemented, see Finding 2019-05

Finding — Stale dated checks not reviewed and updated:

During our review of the bank reconciliations, it was noted that some stale dated checks on the
bank reconciliation have been outstanding for more than 5 years. The City does not have
policies and procedures to address the checks by contacting the vendor, reissuing or submitting
to the State Controller’s office.

Effect:
They City may not be in compliance with State requirements regarding unclaimed property.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the City review and address long outstanding checks by contacting
vendors, reissuing and submitting to the State Controller’s office as required.

Current Status:
Not implemented, see Finding 2019-06
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